
B
E

LLE
V

U
E

C
O

N
V

E
N

TIO
N

C
E

N
TE

R
A

U
TH

O
R

ITY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
April 24, 2019



 
 

BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY 
 
Board Meeting – TENTATIVE AGENDA 
Wednesday, April 24, 2019 @ 12:00pm 
 
I. Call to Order 

II. Attendance 
III. Approval of Minutes 

- March 27, 2019 (document) 
 

IV.  Chairman’s Report -   
    

V. Committee Reports 
 

Finance Committee 
- Review/Approval of voucher & payroll expenditures 

(document) 

- March Financial Statements (document) 

   
Facilities Committee 

- Facilities Report (document) 
- Resolution 2019-06 - V&R Roofing Contract (document) 
- Resolution 2019-07 – Carlson Audio Systems Contact 

(document) 
- Resolution 2019-08 – SOJ Project Management 

Services Contract (document) 
  

Marketing 
- Meydenbauer Center March 2019 Sales and 

Marketing Activity (document) 
          

VI.  Staff Report 
 

Visit Bellevue 
- 2019 Q1 Sales Repot  
- March Executive Summary (document) 

 

  
VII.      Executive Session  
VIII.     Communications with the Public 
IX.       Adjournment 
 

Next Board Meeting: Wednesday, May 22, 2019 
    Meydenbauer Center 
    Bellevue, WA  98004 



MINUTES



BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY 
BOARD MEETING 

 
March 27, 2019          Meydenbauer Center  
 12:00PM 
            Bellevue, WA 98004 
____________________________________________________  _________ _______ 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

  
Meeting was called to order by Chairman Bob Wallace at 12:05 pm.  

 
II.      ATTENDANCE:  Bob Wallace, Roger Anderson, Rick Carlson, Ann Kawasaki Romero, 

Laurie Tish, Ron Hofilena 
 
Others Present:  Mayor John Chelminiak, City of Bellevue Finance Department 
Representative, Raymond Fleshman 
 
Staff:  Tim Carr, CEO; Patrick McCluskey, CFO; Brad Jones, Executive Director-VB, Jeff 
Vaughan, Director of Facilities, Sara Waltemire, Director of Sales & Events 
 
III. Minutes:  Recorded 
 

Motion by Mr. Anderson and second by Mr. Carlson to approve the February 27, 
2019 meeting minutes. Motion carried 5-0. 
 

 
IV.      CHAIRMAN REPORT  
 
No Report 
 
V. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

A. Finance Committee 

(1) Review and Approval of Voucher and Payroll Expenditures   

As per requirement of RCW 42.3 and the Budget, Accounting, and Reporting System (BARS) manual  
(Vol. 1 Pt. 3, CH3, Section D), following vouchers and payroll expenditures incurred from  
2/22/19 to 3/20/19 are enclosed for your review and approval. 
                            
Accounts Payable checks #60367 to #60536      $           417,235.33  

  Including regular monthly utilities in excess      

  
of $15,000 with the signatures of Chief 
Executive  60406 $15,000.00    

  Officer and Chief Financial Officer  60470 $21,540.09    
  (per Resolution 2018-09)  60515 $40,554.80    
     60386 $15,954.10    
     60527 $30,398.31    
     60437 $21,145.96    
     60499 $21,841.85    



         
Payroll period ending 2/28/2019 (pay date 
3/6/19)   $  199,710.60    
Payroll period ending 3/15/2019 (pay date 
3/21/19)   $  212,981.74    

         $           412,692.34  
         
Transfer #01907 to #01930       $           241,826.43  

         

  Total       $        1,071,754.10  
 

Motion by Mr. Carlson and second by Ms. Tish to approve the voucher and payroll 
expenditures from 2/22/19 to 3/20/19.  Motion carried (5-0). 
 

Mr. McCluskey reviewed a memorandum dated March 19, 2019 regarding the February 2019 
Unaudited Financial Statements and Reserve Funding Report.  He noted that February 2019 
Financial Statements had been reviewed prior by the Finance Committee.  

 
B. Facilities Committee   

 
Mr. Vaughan presented a memorandum dated March 22, 2019 regarding the Facilities Report. 

 
C.  Meydenbauer Center Sales and Marketing Activity 

 
Ms. Waltemire reviewed a memorandum dated March 20, 2019 regarding Meydenbauer 
Center February 2019 Sales and Marketing Activity. 
 
 
VI.   STAFF REPORT  
 
Visit Bellevue 
Mr. Jones reviewed a memorandum dated March 21, 2019 regarding the February Executive 
Summary. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
VII.   EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
XIII. COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE PUBLIC - None 
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Wallace adjourned the meeting at 1:36 pm. 
 
NEXT BOARD MEETING:  Wednesday, March 24, 2019 @ 12:00 pm   

     Bellevue, WA 98072 
 



FINANCE































M
ey

d
en

b
au

er
 C

en
te

r
K

ey
 It

em
s 

R
ep

o
rt

"O
ur

 c
om

m
itm

en
t 

is
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 e
ve

nt
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ar

ts
 c

en
te

r 
th

at
 g

en
er

at
es

 c
om

m
un

ity
an

d 
em

pl
oy

ee
 p

rid
e,

 c
re

at
es

 e
co

no
m

ic
 s

tim
ul

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
l g

ue
st

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n.
"

C
o

m
m

un
it

y 
B

en
ef

it
s

C
ur

re
nt

 M
on

th
Ye

ar
 T

o 
D

at
e

YT
D

 P
rio

r 
Ye

ar
C

on
ve

nt
io

n 
C

en
te

r 
&

 V
B

W
 E

co
no

m
ic

 Im
pa

ct
$2

0,
59

0,
08

0
Th

ea
tr

e 
Ec

on
om

ic
 Im

pa
ct

$3
40

,3
40

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
um

m
ar

y
C

ur
re

nt
 M

on
th

Ye
ar

 t
o 

D
at

e
YT

D
 P

rio
r 

Ye
ar

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

Va
ria

nc
e

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

Va
ria

nc
e

A
ct

ua
l

Va
ria

nc
e

%
 V

ar
ia

nc
e

C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

C
en

te
r 

Re
ve

nu
es

92
9,

57
3

$ 
   

   
89

8,
77

7
$ 

   
   

30
,7

96
$ 

   
   

 
3%

2,
58

3,
81

6
$ 

   
  

2,
58

1,
54

1
$ 

   
  

2,
27

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

0%
2,

37
5,

90
2

$ 
   

  
20

7,
91

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

9%
C

on
ve

nt
io

n 
C

en
te

r 
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

7,
30

1
80

4,
22

2
53

,0
79

7%
2,

34
5,

05
1

2,
37

4,
71

8
(2

9,
66

6)
(1

%
)

2,
28

9,
11

5
55

,9
36

2%
C

o
nv

en
ti

o
n 

C
en

te
r 

In
co

m
e 

(L
o

ss
)

72
,2

72
$ 

   
   

 
94

,5
55

$ 
  

   
  

(2
2,

28
3)

$ 
   

  
(2

4%
)

23
8,

76
5

$ 
   

   
20

6,
82

4
$ 

   
   

31
,9

41
$ 

   
  

 
15

%
86

,7
86

$ 
  

   
  

 
15

1,
97

9
$ 

  
   

  
  

17
5%

C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

C
en

te
r 

C
ov

er
ag

e 
Ra

tio
10

8%
11

2%
11

0%
10

9%
10

4%

Vi
si

t 
B

el
le

vu
e 

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

Re
ve

nu
es

1,
98

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

48
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
32

%
69

,6
99

$ 
   

   
   

 
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
(5

,3
01

)
$ 

   
   

   
(7

%
)

91
,7

04
$ 

   
   

   
 

(2
2,

00
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(2

4%
)

Vi
si

t 
B

el
le

vu
e 

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

Ex
pe

ns
es

13
3,

74
1

11
0,

61
4

23
,1

27
21

%
32

1,
39

0
37

3,
03

5
(5

1,
64

5)
(1

4%
)

19
2,

02
8

12
9,

36
3

67
%

V
is

it
 B

el
le

vu
e 

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

In
co

m
e 

(L
o

ss
)

(1
31

,7
57

)
$ 

   
 

(1
09

,1
14

)
$ 

   
 

(2
2,

64
3)

$ 
   

  
(2

1%
)

(2
51

,6
91

)
$ 

   
  

(2
98

,0
35

)
$ 

   
  

46
,3

44
$ 

   
  

 
16

%
(1

00
,3

24
)

$ 
  

   
(1

51
,3

67
)

$ 
  

   
  

 
(1

51
%

)

Th
ea

tr
e 

Re
ve

nu
es

55
,9

44
$ 

   
   

  
36

,6
77

$ 
   

   
  

19
,2

67
$ 

   
   

 
53

%
99

,3
72

$ 
   

   
   

 
92

,3
12

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

06
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
8%

88
,1

05
$ 

   
   

   
 

11
,2

67
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

%
Th

ea
tr

e 
Ex

pe
ns

es
56

,8
24

43
,4

90
13

,3
34

31
%

12
5,

37
6

12
0,

50
4

4,
87

2
4%

12
0,

40
0

4,
97

5
4%

Th
ea

tr
e 

In
co

m
e 

(L
o

ss
)

(8
80

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

(6
,8

13
)

$ 
   

  
   

5,
93

4
$ 

   
   

  
87

%
(2

6,
00

3)
$ 

   
   

 
(2

8,
19

2)
$ 

   
   

 
2,

18
9

$ 
   

  
  

 
8%

(3
2,

29
5)

$ 
  

   
  

6,
29

2
$ 

   
  

  
   

  
 

19
%

Th
ea

tr
e 

C
ov

er
ag

e 
Ra

tio
98

%
84

%
79

%
77

%
73

%

Tr
an

si
en

t 
O

cc
up

an
cy

 T
ax

 (T
O

T)
A

ct
ua

l
B

ud
ge

t
Va

ria
nc

e
A

ct
ua

l
B

ud
ge

t
Va

ria
nc

e
A

ct
ua

l
Va

ria
nc

e
%

 V
ar

ia
nc

e
C

as
h 

B
as

is
To

ta
l T

O
T 

Re
ve

nu
es

90
4,

24
9

$ 
   

   
81

5,
72

7
$ 

   
   

88
,5

22
$ 

   
   

 
11

%
2,

49
7,

54
3

$ 
   

  
2,

34
4,

83
7

$ 
   

  
15

2,
70

6
$ 

   
   

7%
2,

32
6,

86
7

$ 
   

  
17

0,
67

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

7%

B
ui

ld
in

g
 U

ti
liz

at
io

n
C

ur
re

nt
 M

on
th

Ye
ar

 t
o 

D
at

e
Ye

ar
 t

o 
D

at
e

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

Va
ria

nc
e

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

Va
ria

nc
e

A
ct

ua
l

Va
ria

nc
e

%
 V

ar
ia

nc
e

N
um

be
r 

of
 E

ve
nt

s
C

on
ve

nt
io

ns
3

3
0

8
8

0
7

1
M

ee
tin

gs
9

12
(3

)
40

36
4

42
(2

)
Tr

ad
es

ho
w

s
1

0
1

2
1

1
4

(2
)

C
on

su
m

er
 S

ho
w

s
0

0
0

2
2

0
1

1
Ev

en
ts

2
1

1
2

1
1

1
1

B
an

qu
et

s/
Re

ce
pt

io
ns

11
10

1
23

22
1

18
5

To
ta

l
26

26
0

0%
77

70
7

10
%

73
4

5%
A

tt
en

da
nc

e
18

,0
61

17
,6

00
46

1
3%

38
,4

69
42

,2
61

(3
,7

92
)

(9
%

)
36

,0
29

2,
44

0
7%

F&
B

 C
ap

tu
re

 R
at

e 
pe

r 
A

tt
en

de
e

$3
2.

51
$3

3.
18

$4
0.

12
$3

6.
58

$3
7.

92
$2

.2
0

6%
O

cc
up

an
cy

69
%

58
%

61
%

59
%

55
%

Th
ea

tr
e 

U
ti

liz
at

io
n

C
ur

re
nt

 M
on

th
Ye

ar
 t

o 
D

at
e

Ye
ar

 t
o 

D
at

e
A

ct
ua

l
B

ud
ge

t
Va

ria
nc

e
A

ct
ua

l
B

ud
ge

t
Va

ria
nc

e
A

ct
ua

l
Va

ria
nc

e
%

 V
ar

ia
nc

e
Th

ea
tr

e 
Ev

en
ts

10
8

2
25

%
17

16
1

6%
13

4
31

%
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
s

21
18

3
17

%
24

34
(1

0)
(2

9%
)

41
(1

7)
(4

1%
)

A
tt

en
da

nc
e

6,
50

3
3,

60
0

2,
90

3
81

%
9,

40
9

7,
15

0
2,

25
9

32
%

10
,0

10
(6

01
)

(6
%

)
O

cc
up

an
cy

68
%

65
%

3%
5%

47
%

52
%

(6
%

)
(1

1%
)

43
%

3%
8%

A
cc

o
un

ts
 R

ec
ei

va
b

le
YT

D
 P

rio
r 

Ye
ar

 9
0+

 
%

 9
0+

 
 9

0+
 

%
 9

0+
 

To
ta

l O
/S

D
ay

s 
O

/S
D

ay
s 

O
/S

To
ta

l O
/S

D
ay

s 
O

/S
D

ay
s 

O
/S

78
5,

73
1

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
67

3,
96

3
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%

Ye
ar

 T
o 

D
at

e

FO
R

 T
H

E
 P

E
R

IO
D

 E
N

D
IN

G
 M

A
R

C
H

 3
1,

 2
01

9

$4
28

,9
44

$9
,0

14
,0

88
$1

9,
43

6,
72

9
$5

27
,7

48

03
 2

01
9

M
C

 F
in

an
ce

4/
16

/2
01

9
11

:2
3 

AM



 

Bellevue Convention Center Authority | March 2019 Financial Statements | April 16, 2019| Page 1 

 
 

 

Date:  April 16, 2019 

To:  BCCA Board Members 

From:  Patrick McCluskey, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: March 2019 Unaudited Financial Statements and Reserve Funding Report 

 
Attached is a copy of the March 2019 Financial Statements for your review. March revenues of 
$929,573 were $30,796 or 3% better than budget. Expenses of $857,301 were up $53,079 or 7%. 
March finished with a coverage ratio of 108% compared to 112% budgeted. Attendance of 18,061 
was up 461 or 3% and occupancy was 69% compared to 58% budgeted. 
 
The increase in revenues was primarily due to the Banquet category.  The Banquet category was up 
$30,285 due to an increase in food and beverage and technical services sales.  Tradeshows and 
Events were higher than budget by $16,732 and $16,094 respectively due to unanticipated 
additional events.  This increase, however, was offset by Meetings in the amount of $32,321 due to 
three less events than budget. 
 
The increase in expenses was led by Operations in the amount of $28,514 due to the timing for 
elevator maintenance.  The Food and Beverage department was higher than budget by $26,722 due 
to higher cost of goods sold and equipment maintenance for the month.  Marketing and Guest 
Services was higher than budget by $7,164 due to an increase in labor for the month.  Administration 
department was lower than budget in the amount of $9,321 due to the timing of professional 
consultant expenses.  
 
BALANCE SHEET – Assets (page 1 of financial statements) 
 
Cash on hand and in bank of $8,906,980 as of the end of March reflects a $182,946 decrease from 
February’s ending balance of $9,089,926. Cash decreased by $195,845 from net operating activities 
and increased by $12,899 in net TOT and interest revenues. 
 
Accounts Receivable - Customer of $785,731 is an increase of $141,127 from the February balance of 
$644,604. 
 
Accounts Receivable - Government of $1,400,834 reflects a decrease of $109,695 from the February 
balance. This account consists of accrued Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) receipts for two months. 
 
Restricted Assets: All of the BCCA's reserves were funded as of the end of March in accordance with 
the Finance Plan. 

 
The Repair Replacement and Enhancement Fund (RREF) balance of $2,176,806 reflects a 
decrease of $34,480 from the February balance. Changes to the fund balance are due to 
$39,208 in expenses offset with $4,728 in interest earnings. See page 7 of the report for the 
detailed expenditures. 

 



Bellevue Convention Center Authority | March 2019 Financial Statements| April 16, 2019| Page 2 

 
 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY (page 2 of financial statements) 
 
Accounts Payable-Maintenance & Operations of $226,462 decreased by $33,520 from the February 
ending balance of $259,982 based upon our normal business cycle.   
 
Total Retained Earnings of ($13,937,609) improved by $274,755 from the February retained earnings 
balance. This improvement is equal to the amount of profit as reflected on the bottom of the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity on page 3.  
 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES & CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY  
(page 3 of financial statements) 
 
Total Operating Revenues for the Convention Center during the month of March were $929,573.  
This was $30,796 or 3% better than the budget of $898,777.  
 

Food and Beverage Revenues of $587,164 were $3,213 or 1% better than the budget of 
$583,951.  
 
Event Services Revenues of $124,190 were $10,074 or 9% better than the budget of 
$114,116.  
 
Rent Revenues of $218,887 were $8,631 or 4% more than the budget of $210,256. 
 
Rent Credit deductions of ($83,593) were $2,914 or 4% more than the budgeted amount of 
($80,679).  

 
Parking Revenues of $82,926 were $11,793 or 17% better than the budget of $71,133.  

 
Operating Expenses for the Convention Center for the month of March of $857,301 were $53,079 
or 7% more than the budget of $804,222 for the month.  
 

Operations Department Expenses of $208,151 were $28,514 or 16% higher than budget.  
 

Technical Service profit margin was 70% compared to 78% budgeted. 
 
Parking profit margin was 75% compared to 76% budgeted. 

 
Food and Beverage Expenses of $369,370 were $26,722 or 8% more than the budget of 
$342,648 due to an increase in cost of goods sold and variable labor for the month. 
 

Profit Margin was 37% compared to 41% budgeted. 
 

Variable Labor (direct and agency) labor was 15% of revenue compared to 13% 
budgeted. 
 
Cost of goods sold was 20% of revenue compared to a target of 18%. 
   

Marketing and Guest Services Expenses of $137,613 were $7,164 or 5% more than the 
budget of $130,449.  The variance is due to an increase in labor for the month. 



Bellevue Convention Center Authority | March 2019 Financial Statements| April 16, 2019| Page 3 

 
 

 
Administration Expenses of $142,167 were $9,321 or 6% better than the budget of $151,488. 
The variance is due to the timing of professional consultant expenses. 
 

Net Operations for March of $72,272 were $22,283 less than the $94,555 budgeted.  
 
Visit Bellevue revenues of $1,984 were $484 more than the budget of $1,500 for March. Visit 
Bellevue expenses of $133,741 were $23,127 more than the budget of $110,614 due to the timing of 
marketing projects. 
 
Theatre revenues of $55,944 were $19,267 more than the budget of $36,677 due to clients ordering 
more technical labor than budgeted. Theatre expenses of $56,824 were $13,334 more than budget 
due to additional labor needs for the increase in events and performances. 
 
Theatre held twenty-one performances compared to eighteen budgeted. The coverage ratio for the 
Theatre was 98% compared to a budgeted level of 84%.  
 
SUMMARY 
The above is only intended to provide a brief overview of the March 2019 financial statements.  If 
you have any questions, please contact me at 425-450-3760. 
 
cc: Zemed Yitref, Investment & Debt Manager, City of Bellevue

 



BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2019
 

"Our commitment is to provide an outstanding event and performing arts 
center that generates community and employee pride, creates economic 

stimulation, and provides exceptional guest satisfaction."



BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2019

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Table of Contents

Financial Statements

Balance Sheet 1-2
 

- Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Fund Net Position
Current Month/Year-to-Date - By Department 3

- Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Fund Net Position
Current Month/Year-to-Date Comparison to Last Year 4

- Statement of Cash Flows 5-6

- Comments to Financial Statements 7

Exhibits

- Year-to-Date Revenue & Expense (Actual vs. Budget) 8

- Transient Occupancy Tax Collections (Actual vs. Budget) 9

- Accounts Receivable (Trend & Aging) 10

NOTE:  These are unaudited Financial Statements pending review by the 
Washington State Auditor's Office.



BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY  
BALANCE SHEET  

March February March
2019 2019 2018

ASSETS

 Current assets:
Cash on hand and in bank 8,906,980$          9,089,926$          7,591,966$          
Leasehold reserve 1,094,454 1,092,118 994,228
Renovation reserve 0 0 20,737

 Repair and replacement reserve 2,176,806 2,211,286 1,675,848
Accounts receivable - customers 785,731 644,604 673,963
Accounts receivable - government 1,400,834 1,510,529 1,458,293
Accounts receivable - FSA 18,176 20,314 0
Accounts receivable - misc 152,583 165,590 50,168
Inventory 118,933 107,754 92,612
Prepaid expenses 238,019 283,398 221,166
    Total current assets 14,892,515 15,125,520 12,778,982

 Restricted assets:
Debt service reserve fund 306,792 306,138 300,325
Operating reserve 1,323,327 1,320,504 1,295,432
Funds on deposit with trustee:
    Bond fund 2,972,311 2,272,336 2,615,921
    Lease purchase rent reserve fund 705,510 704,573 667,168
        Total restricted assets 5,307,940 4,603,550 4,878,846

 Fixed assets:
Building 61,873,204 61,873,204 61,831,354
Equipment 6,515,348 6,511,430 6,428,302
 Less: accumulated depreciation (34,829,302) (34,667,369) (32,808,142)
        Total fixed assets 33,559,250 33,717,266 35,451,514

Other capital assets:
Construction in progress - RREF 440,414 394,395 165,572
Construction in progress - renovation project 0 0 12,009
Capitalized expansion costs 0 0 604,274
        Total other capital assets 440,414 394,395 781,854

            TOTAL ASSETS 54,200,118$        53,840,731$        53,891,196$        

- 1 -



BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY
BALANCE SHEET

March February March
2019 2019 2018

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable - maintenance & operations 226,462$             259,982$             149,914$             
  Special obligation revenue bonds payable 897,135               998,045               854,484               
  Accrued interest on revenue bonds 5,012,505            5,563,811            4,386,148            
  Deposits payable 948,588               1,029,273            1,058,696            
  Wages and benefits payable 321,115               240,692               289,067               
  Compensated absences payable 165,972               149,677               143,381               
  Sales tax payable 63,964                 57,204                 68,061                 
  Other accrued liabilities 26,720                 59,845                 22,704                 
        Total current liabilities 7,662,462            8,358,528            6,972,454            

Payable from restricted assets:
  Special obligation revenue bonds payable 313,781               212,871               300,288               
  Accrued interest on revenue bonds 1,821,605            (1,254,031)            1,603,245            
  Retainage payable 17,615                 17,464                 65,247                 
        Total payable from restricted assets 2,153,001            (1,023,696)            1,968,781            

Long-term liabilities:
  Special obligation revenue bonds payable 5,994,920            5,994,920            7,205,836            
  Accrued interest on revenue bonds 30,450,203          32,846,162          34,127,123          
        Total long term liabilities 36,445,123          38,841,083          41,332,959          

     TOTAL LIABILITIES 46,260,587          46,175,915          50,274,194          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred gain on refunding bonds 648                      687                      2,222                   
        Total deferred inflows 648                      687                      2,222                   

FUND NET POSITION
  Contributed capital 21,876,493          21,876,493          21,876,493          
  Retained earnings:
     Reserved for leasehold 1,094,454            1,092,118            994,228               
     Reserved for renovation -                           -                           20,737                 
     Reserved for operations 306,792               306,138               300,325               
     Reserved for repair and replacement 2,176,806            2,211,286            1,675,848            
     Reserved for debt service reserve fund 1,323,327            1,320,504            1,295,432            
     Reserved for lease purchase rent reserve fund 705,510               704,573               667,168               
     Unreserved (19,544,498)          (19,846,982)          (23,215,451)          
        Total retained earnings (13,937,609)          (14,212,364)          (18,261,713)          

    TOTAL NET POSITION 7,938,884            7,664,129            3,614,779            

      TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
      AND NET POSITION 54,200,118$        53,840,731$        53,891,196$        

- 2 -



BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION BY DEPARTMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2019

YTD
% To Annual % Annual

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance Budget Budget Spent
CONVENTION CENTER OPERATIONS
CONVENTION CENTER REVENUES:

Food & beverage 587,164$              583,951$   3,213$          1,543,363$          1,545,972$   (2,609)$           (0%) 6,208,370 8%
Event services 124,190                114,116 10,074 388,662 357,391 31,271 9% 1,587,687 7%
Rent 218,887                210,256 8,631 642,471 669,760 (27,289) (4%) 2,177,723 9%
Rent Credit (83,593)                 (80,679) (2,914) (226,691) (214,964) (11,727) 5% (840,574) 8%

 Parking 82,926                  71,133 11,793 236,010 223,382 12,628 6% 754,755 12%
Other -                  -                    -                            -                    -                      0% -                     0%

TOTAL CONVENTION CENTER REVENUES 929,573 898,777 30,796 2,583,816 2,581,541 2,275 0% 9,887,961 26%

CONVENTION CENTER EXPENSES:
Operations 208,151                179,637 28,514 598,586 541,297 57,289 11% 2,100,462 9%
Food and Beverage 369,370                342,648 26,722 945,616 977,081 (31,465) (3%) 3,764,401 9%
Marketing & Guest Services 137,613                130,449 7,164 382,342 423,743 (41,401) (10%) 1,594,201 9%
Administration 142,167                151,488 (9,321) 418,507 432,597 (14,090) (3%) 1,711,847 8%

TOTAL CONVENTION CENTER EXPENSES 857,301 804,222 53,079 2,345,051 2,374,718 (29,666) (1%) 9,170,911 9%

CONVENTION CENTER OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) 72,272 94,555 (22,283) 238,765 206,824 31,941 (15%) 717,050 33%
 

CONVENTION CENTER COVERAGE RATIO 108% 112% 110% 109% 108%

VISIT BELLEVUE WASHINGTON OPERATIONS
Visit Bellevue Washington Revenue 1,984 1,500 484 69,699 75,000 (5,301) (7%) 113,000 26%
Sales Expenses 52,690 58,517 (5,827) 137,638 160,714 (23,076) (14%) 733,584 5%
Marketing and Communications Expenses 81,051 44,362 36,689 182,430 188,900 (6,470) (3%) 711,614 5%
Visitor Experience Expenses 0 7,734 (7,734) 1,322 23,421 (22,099) (94%) 225,837 5%

VISIT BELLEVUE WASHINGTON OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) (131,757) (109,114) (22,643) (251,691) (298,035) 46,344 16% (1,558,036) 2%

THEATRE OPERATIONS
Revenue 55,944 36,677 19,267 99,372 92,312 7,060 8% 418,179 1%
Expense 46,129 34,993 11,136 98,028 94,666 3,362 4% 391,132 6%
Theatre Indirect Cost Allocation 10,695 8,497 2,198 27,348 25,838 1,510 6% 103,863 9%

THEATRE OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) (880) (6,813) 5,934 (26,003) (28,192) 2,189 8% (76,816) 39%

THEATRE COVERAGE RATIO 98% 84% 79% 77% 84%

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE DEPRECIATION (60,365) (21,373) (38,992) (38,929) (119,404) 80,475 67% (917,802) 4%

TOTAL COVERAGE RATIO 94% 98% 99% 96% 92%

Depreciation 163,433 160,155 3,278 528,972 480,465 48,507 (10%) 1,921,860 9%
Amortization (39) (103) 64                 (114) (299) 0                     0% (2,440) 3%

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) (223,759) (181,425) (42,334) (567,787) (599,570) 31,782 5% (2,837,222) 10%

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
From transient occupancy tax:

Lease purchase rent payments 628,749                700,417     (71,668)         2,101,251 2,101,251 -                      0.00% 7,577,504 9%
TOT 1995/2002 bonds 203,832                167,554     36,278          538,940 502,662 36,278            7.22% 2,010,650 8%
Leasehold Rent 9,750                    -                  9,750            27,300 -                    27,300            0.00% 0 0%
TOT Operating payment (38,027)                 -                  (38,027)         -                            38,027          (38,027)           0% 3,058,846 2%

Interest income 26,413                  5,000          21,413          80,698 15,000 65,698 437.99% 60,000 25%
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES 830,717 872,971 (42,254) 2,748,189 2,656,940 91,249 3.43% 12,707,000 7%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
TOT 1995/2002 bonds offset 203,832                167,554     36,278          538,940 502,662 36,278            7.22% 2,010,650 8%
Site lease and related cost -                            -                  -                    17                         20                 (3)                    -15.35% 20 0%
Interest expense 128,371                155,605     (27,234)         1,155,302 1,200,983 (45,681) -3.80% 3,756,055 4%
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of fixed assets -                            -                  -                    (1,091)                   -                    (1,091)             0.00% -                     0%
RREF expenses -                            -                  -                    3,396                    -                    3,396              0.00% -                     0%

TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 332,203 323,159 9,044 1,696,563 1,703,665 (7,102) 5,766,725 5%

OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE
   OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES 274,755 368,387 (93,633) 483,839 353,705 130,133 36.79% 4,103,053 84%

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
From (to) City of Bellevue -                            -                  -                    -                            -                    -                      -                     

NET INCOME(LOSS) 274,755 368,387 (93,633) 483,839 353,705 130,133 4,103,053 59%

 TOTAL NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 7,664,129 7,455,045
Special Item 0 0

TOTAL NET POSITION AT END OF PERIOD 7,938,884$      7,938,884$     

- 3 -



BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

March YTD

2019 2018 Variance 2019 2018 Variance
CONVENTION CENTER OPERATIONS
CONVENTION CENTER REVENUES:

Food & beverage 587,164$          604,333$              (17,169)$       1,543,363$      1,451,941$           91,422$        
Event services 124,190            123,544 646 388,662            338,657                 50,005
Rent 218,887            205,458 13,428 642,471            594,947                 47,524
Rent Credit (83,593)              (93,553) 9,960 (226,691)           (216,374)                (10,316)

 Parking 82,926               61,286 21,640 236,010            206,730                 29,280
Other -                     -                        -                -                        -                             -                

TOTAL CONVENTION CENTER REVENUES 929,573 901,067 28,506 2,583,816 2,375,902 207,914

CONVENTION CENTER EXPENSES:
Administrative and general

Personnel
Full-time 262,960 273,510 (10,551)         759,709 776,110 (16,401)
Part-time 61,804 51,735 10,069 155,326 149,780 5,546
Benefits 87,620 89,343 (1,723) 252,397 257,222 (4,825)
Service fees 75,419 75,611 (192) 193,459 180,730 12,728

Total personnel 487,803 490,199 (2,397) 1,360,890 1,363,842 (2,952)
Contract labor 9,927 16,171 (6,244) 29,195 32,378 (3,183)
Other administrative and general 103,304 84,909 18,395 249,300 211,944 37,356
Other food and beverage 9,442 10,718 (1,276) 30,319 35,926 (5,607)
Operating Supplies 15,019 14,402 618 33,862 46,297 (12,435)
Other supplies 3,132 5,165 (2,033) 16,755 23,064 (6,310)
Event services reimbursable 19,474 13,731 5,743 53,066 49,907 3,159

Total administrative and general 648,101 635,295 12,806 1,773,388 1,763,359 10,029

Cost of goods and sold 116,959 98,795 18,163 297,889 273,987 23,903

Other Expenses
Marketing 13,174 8,136 5,038 32,121 42,228 (10,107)
Utilities and maintenance 72,568 62,186 10,382 217,343 180,366 36,977
Parking 20,290 15,505 4,785 61,420 53,954 7,466
Indirect Cost Allocation (13,790) (8,624) (5,166) (37,110) (24,779) (12,331)

Total other expenses 92,242 77,203 15,039 273,774 251,770 22,004
TOTAL CONVENTION CENTER EXPENSES 857,301 811,293 46,008 2,345,051 2,289,115 55,936

CONVENTION CENTER OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) 72,272 89,774 (17,502) 238,765 86,786 151,979

VISIT BELLEVUE WASHINGTON OPERATIONS
Visit Bellevue Washington Revenue 1,984 1,444                    541 69,699 91,704                   (22,005)
Sales Expenses 52,690 45,778                  6,912 137,638 118,183                 19,455
Marketing and Communications Expenses 81,051 26,741                  54,310 182,430 73,845                   108,585
Visitor Experience Expenses 0 -                            0 1,322 -                             1,322

VISIT BELLEVUE WASHINGTON OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) (131,757) (71,075) (60,682) (251,691) (100,324) (151,367)

THEATRE OPERATIONS
Revenue 55,944 40,625 15,320 99,372 88,105 11,267
Expense 46,129 34,129 12,000 98,028 95,622 2,406
Theatre Indirect Cost Allocation 10,695 8,624 2,071 27,348 24,779 2,569

THEATRE OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) (880) (2,128) 1,249 (26,003) (32,295) 6,292

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE DEPRECIATION (60,365) 16,570 (76,935) (38,929) (45,832) 6,903

Depreciation 163,433 184,110 (20,677) 528,972 542,614 (13,642)
Amortization (39) (74) 34 (114) (214) 100

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) (223,759) (167,466) (56,293) (567,787) (588,232) 20,445

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
From transient occupancy tax:

Lease purchase rent payments 628,749 622,083 6,666 2,101,251 1,866,249 235,002
TOT 1995/2002 bonds 203,832 167,221 36,611 538,940 501,663 37,277
Leasehold Rent 9,750 5,850                    3,900 27,300 17,550                   9,750
TOT Operating payment (38,027) 214,127                (252,154) 0 214,127                 (214,127)

Interest income 26,413 11,765 26,413 80,698 34,947 45,751
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES 830,717 1,021,046 (178,564) 2,748,189 2,634,536 113,653

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
TOT 1995/2002 bonds offset 203,832 167,221 36,611 538,940            501,663 37,277
Site lease and related costs 0 -                            0 17                     24                          (7)
Interest expense 128,371 142,629                (14,258) 1,155,302        1,179,942             (24,640)
Disposal of fixed assets 0 -                            0 (1,091)               1,083                     (2,174)
RREF expenses 0 6,000                    (6,000)           3,396                7,713                     (4,318)

TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 332,203 315,850 16,353 1,696,563 1,690,425 6,139

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE
   OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES 274,755 537,730 (262,975) 483,839 355,879 127,960

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
From (to) City of Bellevue -                     -                        -                -                    -                         -                

NET INCOME(LOSS) 274,755 537,730 (262,975) 483,839 355,879 127,960

 TOTAL NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 7,664,129 3,077,049 4,587,080 7,455,045 3,258,900
Special Item -                     -                        -                    -                         

TOTAL NET POSITION AT END OF PERIOD 7,938,884$       3,614,779$          7,938,884$      3,614,779$           

FOR THE PERIODS ENDING MARCH 31, 2019 AND MARCH 31, 2018

- 4 -



BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2019
Month Ended YTD Ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers 780,835 2,546,759
Cash paid to suppliers (585,596) (1,465,898)
Cash paid to employees (391,085) (1,250,655)
Net cash (used) by operating activities (195,845) (169,794)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
 Contributions by municipalities and others:

Lease purchase rent payments 700,417 2,765,834
TOT Operating payment 0 0
Transfer (to) from 1995 and 2002 bond payment fund 203,832 538,940
Leasehold rent 9,750 27,300
Transfer (to) from City of Bellevue 0 0
RREF Expenses 0 (3,396)
Site lease and related costs 0 (17)

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 913,999 3,328,661

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Interest paid to bondholders 0 (2,502,183)
Principal paid to bondholders 0 (507,817)
Transfer (to) from 1995 and 2002 bond payment fund (203,832) (538,940)
Contributed capital 0 0
Capital expenditures (51,436) (54,899)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 0 1,091
Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities (255,267) (3,602,748)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Sale/maturity (purchase) of investment  securities and funding of reserves:

Bond fund (699,975) 240,159
Lease purchase rent reserve (937) (2,662)

Interest received on investments 26,413 80,698
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (674,499) 318,195

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (211,612) (125,685)

Balance - Beginning of the period 14,019,972 13,934,044

Balance - End of the period 13,808,359 13,808,359

13,808,359 13,808,359
(0) (0)

- 5 -



BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating Income (loss) (223,759) (567,787)

Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 163,394 528,858
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net (125,982) (158,272)
Inventories (11,179) (17,275)
Prepaid expenses 45,380 10,437
Deposits payable (80,685) (47,857)
Wages and benefits payable 80,423 74,503
Compensated absences payable 16,295 35,733
Accounts payable (33,520) (9,139)
Sales tax payable 6,760 (2,193)
Other accrued liabilities (33,124) (17,048)
Retainage payable 151 246
Total adjustments 27,914 397,994

Net cash (used) by operating activities (195,845) (169,794)

Cash and cash equivalents are presented in the balance sheet  as follows:

Month Ended YTD Ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019

 Current assets:
    Cash on hand and in bank 8,906,980 8,906,980
     Leasehold reserve 1,094,454 1,094,454
     Renovation reserve 0 0
     Repair and replacement reserve 2,176,806 2,176,806
  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12,178,240 12,178,240

 Restricted cash:
    Debt service reserve fund 306,792 306,792
    Operating reserve 1,323,327 1,323,327
  RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,630,120 1,630,120

  TOTAL RESTRICTED AND UNRESTRICTED CASH 13,808,359 13,808,359

0 0

 - 6 -



COMMENTS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2019

Comment 1 - Reserves

RESERVE FUND EQUITY AMOUNT 
REQUIRED ACTUAL VARIANCE

Debt Service Reserve Fund 1,323,327             1,323,327                                                                   -                      
Leasehold Reserve 1,094,454             1,094,454                                                                   -                      
Renovation Reserve -                             -                                                                                  -                      
Operations 306,792                306,792                                                                      -                      
Lease Purchase Rent Reserve 705,510                705,510                                                                      -                      
Repair and Replacement Reserve 2,176,806             2,176,806                                                                   -                      
TOTALS 5,606,889$           5,606,889$                                                                 -$                    

Comment 2 - Monthly Breakdown of Increase/(Decrease) in Fixed Assets

Description Amount
Building/Design:

Less:  Disposal of Surplus Assets 0

Current Month net change to Building 0
Equipment/Computer/Furniture/Vehicle:

19-22 L3 Car Chargers 5,417

Current Month addition to Equipment 5,417              

Less:  Disposal of Surplus Assets (Vehicle) (1,500)              

Current month net change to Equipment 3,917.08         

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fixed Assets 3,917$          

Other Non-Operating Expenses:

Less:  Loss (Gain) on Disposed Assets -                  

Current month Non Operating Expenses -                      

Construction in Progress
CIP 46,018

Current Month net change to Construction in Progress 46,018

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Capital Project purchases 49,936$         

- 7 -



5437662
280104

0

Coverage Ratio
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Actual 107% 116% 109% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Budgeted 103% 112% 112% 93% 147% 106% 78% 61% 99% 142% 107% 95%

YTD 107% 111% 110% 110% 110% 110% 110% 110% 110% 110% 110% 110%

Convention Center Operating Expenses
Actual vs. Budget

January 31, 2019 to December 31, 2019

MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS FUND
Convention Center Operating Revenues  (Excluding TOT)

Actual vs. Budget
January 31, 2019 to December 31, 2019

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

J F M A M J J A S O N D

Do
lla

rs
 in

 T
ho

us
an

ds

Budget Actual

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

J F M A M J J A S O N D

D
ol

la
rs

 in
 T

ho
us

an
ds

Budget Actual

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

J F M A M J J A S O N D

Do
lla

rs
 in

 T
ho

us
an

ds

Actual Budget

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

J F M A M J J A S O N D

D
ol

la
rs

 in
 T

ho
us

an
ds

Actual Budget

- 8 -



Transient Occupancy Tax Collections for 2019
Cash Basis

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2019

5437662
280104

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Monthly
Actual 858 736 904

Monthly
Budget 906 623 816 909 1,063 982 1,107 1,312 1,251 1,358 1,232 1,089

Monthly
Actual to
Budget 95% 118% 111%

Cummulative Hotel/Motel Revenue
J F M A M J J A S O N D

Actual 858 1,593 2,498 2,498 2,498 2,498 2,498 2,498 2,498 2,498 2,498 2,498
Budget 906 1,529 2,345 3,254 4,316 5,299 6,405 7,717 8,968 10,326 11,558 12,647
% to  Budg 95% 104% 107% 77% 58% 47% 39% 32% 28% 24% 22% 20%

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

D
ol

la
rs

 in
 T

ho
us

an
ds

Year To Date

Actual Budget

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

D
ol

la
rs

 in
 T

ho
us

an
ds

Current Month

Actual Budget

- 9 -



Accounts Receivable
March 31, 2018 through March 31, 2019

#### 5437662
#### 280104

Accounts Receivable by Aging Period

Mar
Current 771,958$       Current 636,370$     
31-60 3,485 31-60 11,879
61-90 10,289 61-90 0
>90 0 >90 0
TOTAL 785,731$       TOTAL 648,249$     
Less Allowance -                    Less Allowance -                  

785,731$       648,249$     

Feb

Current
98%

31-60
1% 61-90

1% >90
0%

March 31, 2019

Current 98%

31-60
2% 61-90

0%
>90
0%

February 28, 2019

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

M A M J J A S O N D J 2019 F M

D
ol

la
rs

 in
 T

ho
us

an
ds

Accounts Receivable

- 10 -



FACILITIES



 

11100 NE 6th Street, Bellevue, WA 98004 | 425-637-1020 | Meydenbauer.com 

To:  BCCA Board of Directors 
Cc:  Tim Carr, Chief Executive Officer 
 
From:  Jeff Vaughan, Director of Facility Services 
 
Date:  April 19, 2019 
 
Re:  Facilities Report 
 
 
Following is an overview of some of the projects and programs related to Meydenbauer Center 
facility operations and capital projects 
 
 
2019 Capital Projects  
 
The Facilities Committee has reviewed and will recommend for approval two resolutions that 
authorize contracts with vendors for Project 19-06 – Roof Replacement and Project 19-07 
Theatre Sound System. 
 
Office renovation revised cost estimates are being reviewed and will be presented once 
complete.  We are working closely with our architect on final details of the office remodel 
project as work on construction drawings and specifications is commencing in anticipation of 
going to bid in June. 
 
 
Maintenance and Engineering and Custodial Transitions  
 
In March our Custodial Supervisor accepted a new position outside of Meydenbauer Center.   
Management of Custodial Services was previously planned to transition from the Director of 
Facility Services (myself) to the new Facility Manager (Brent Hammer).  The change in the 
Custodial Supervisor, provided a good opportunity to make that transition.  Our new Facility 
Manager has since hired our new Custodial Services Supervisor and is working closely with her to 
set her up to be successful. 



 

Meydenbauer Center | Res2019-06memo| April 19, 2019| Page 1 
 

To:  Bellevue Convention Center Authority Board of Directors 

From:  Jeff Vaughan, Director of Facility Services 

Date:  April 24, 2019 

Subject: Resolution 2019-06 to Enter into a Contract with V&R Roofing for Construction 

Services 

 

BACKGROUND 
Roofing systems at Meydenbauer Center at 26 years old are approaching the end of useful life. 
In 2017 the Board of Directors approved a plan for phased replacement of the roofing surfaces 
over a six year period.  Professional Engineering firm OAC Services, under a separate agreement 
was contracted previously for design, engineering and limited construction management for the 
roofing project, and prepared the drawings, specifications and scope of work. 
 
PROCURMENT PROCESS  
In accordance with state law governing the procurement of public work, and BCCA purchasing 
policy, an Invitation to Bid was issued to all applicable roofing contractors on the MRSC Shared 
Works roster.  Competitive bids were received from four contractors.  V&R roofing was determined 
to be the lowest responsible bidder. 
   
CONTRACT  
The proposed contract with V&R roofing for Construction Services for Meydenbauer Center’s first 
phase of roof replacement is $197,371.  Unused capital funds for the project in 2018 were 
transferred by resolution to the 2019 Capital Plan. Total costs for the project are expected to be 
within the approved 2019 Capital Budget amount. The project schedule will be negotiated and set 
in the contracting process, to be complete prior to the end of FY2019. 
 
Board approval is required for contracts exceeding $75,000.  
 
SUMMARY 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2019-06 to enter into a contract with V&R Roofing for 
Construction Services. 



BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-06 
 

Resolution to Enter Into a Contract with V&R Roofing for Construction Services 
 

WHEREAS, the Bellevue Convention Center Authority (the "Authority"), a public corporation 
chartered by the City of Bellevue (the "City"), has been duly constituted pursuant to RCW 35.21.730 
et.seq. and Ordinance No. 4092 of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by its Charter to transfer funds, to receive and 
administer governmental or private funds, to contract regarding the income or receipts from real and 
personal property, and to do anything a natural person may do; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority in accordance with regulations that guide the procurement of public 
work, issued an Invitation to Bid for roofing services on February 27, 2019; 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with applicable law and established purchasing policy, staff 
determined V&R Roofing to be the lowest responsible bidder; and 
 
 WHEREAS, staff recommends the Authority enter into a contract with V&R Roofing for 
Construction Services for $197,371; and 

 
WHEREAS, the BCCA Board of Directors charter requires the Board to approve all contracts 

that exceed $75,000 and over one year in duration; 
 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Authority 
that it hereby authorizes the Board Chairman to execute a contract with V&R Roofing for 
Construction Services. 
 
 The undersigned Chairman of the Bellevue Convention Center Authority does hereby certify 
that the resolution set forth above was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Bellevue 
Convention Center Authority at a meeting held after due notice on April 24, 2019 at which a quorum 
was present. 
 
 DATED this 24th day of April, 2019. 
 
      _____________________________ 
             Robert Wallace, Chairman 
      Bellevue Convention Center Authority 

 



 

Meydenbauer Center | Res2019-07memo| April 19, 2019| Page 1 
 

To:  Bellevue Convention Center Authority Board of Directors 

From:  Jeff Vaughan, Director of Facility Services 

Date:  April 24, 2019 

Subject: Resolution 2019-07 to Enter into a Contract with Carlson Audio Systems  

 

BACKGROUND 
Replacement of the Theatre Sound System was approved by the Board of Directors as a project 
within the 2019 Capital Plan.  The current system is unable to meet the demands of some of our 
Theatre and Corporate clients and in comparison to other professional venues is below industry 
standards in sound quality and feature sets. 
 
PROCURMENT PROCESS  
In accordance with state law governing the procurement of public work, and BCCA purchasing 
policy, a Request for Proposal was issued to all eligible sound system contractors on the MRSC 
Shared Works roster on March 1st, 2019.  Four contractors attended the pre-bid conference and 
two responsive proposals were received. Staff auditioned speaker systems from two reputable 
manufacturers, supported by local vendors for the products.  A selection committee of four staff 
was formed to evaluate the proposals.  The committee determined that the proposal from Carlson 
Audio Systems was the most suitable to our needs.   
   
CONTRACT  
The proposed contract with Carlson Audio Systems for the replacement of the Theatre Sound 
System is not to exceed $143,000. The amount of the contract is below the budget established 
within the 2019 capital plan. There will be other costs to the project relating to electrical 
infrastructure, but the entire project is expected to be completed within the budgeted amount. 
The project will be complete by August 1, 2019. 
 
Board approval is required for contracts exceeding $75,000.  
 
SUMMARY 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2019-07 to enter into a contract with Carlson Audio 
Systems. 



 

 

 
BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY 

 

Resolution 2019-07 
 

Resolution to Enter into a Contract with Carlson Audio Systems for Theatre Sound System 
Replacement 

 
 WHEREAS, the Bellevue Convention Center Authority (the "Authority"), a public corporation 
chartered by the City of Bellevue (the "City"), has been duly constituted pursuant to RCW 35.21.730 
et.seq. and Ordinance No. 4092 of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by its Charter to transfer funds, to receive and 
administer governmental or private funds, to contract regarding the income or receipts from real and 
personal property, and to do anything a natural person may do; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 1st, 2019, the Authority issued a public RFP for Theatre Sound System 
Replacement for Meydenbauer Center; and 
 

WHEREAS, staff received two qualified responses and the selection committee determined 
Carlson Audio systems to have the best system design proposal and lowest price; and 
 

WHEREAS, staff recommends the Authority enter into a contract with Carlson Audio Systems 
subject to final negotiation, in an amount not to exceed $143,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors is required by its charter to approve by resolution all 
transactions that exceed $75,000; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Authority that the 
Chairman is authorized to enter into a contract for such work; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Authority that it hereby authorizes 
the Board Chairman to execute a contract with Carlson Audio Systems for Theatre Sound System 
Replacement. 

 

The undersigned Chairman of the Bellevue Convention Center Authority does hereby certify 
that the Resolution set forth above was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Bellevue 
Convention Center Authority at a meeting held after due notice on April 24, 2019,  at which time a 
quorum was present. 
 
DATED this 24th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
       Robert Wallace, Chairman 
      Bellevue Convention Center Authority 



 
To:   Bellevue Convention Center Authority Board of Directors 
From:  Tim Carr, Chief Executive Officer  
    Jeff Vaughan, Director of Facility Services 
Date:  April 18, 2019 
Re:  Resolution 2019-08 to enter into a contract with SOJ for Project Management Services 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
The purpose of this resolution is to authorize Meydenbauer Center to enter into a contract with SOJ for 
Project Management Services.    
 
BACKGROUND 
The BCCA Facilities Committee and staff identified the need to acquire Consulting/ Project 
Management services to assist in advancing design and cost estimated for the potential expansion of 
Meydenbauer.  We issued a bid on February 21st with a bid due date of March 8th. 
 
 We received only one bid for the project from SOJ.  SOJ has extensive experience in providing project 
management services for large public projects in the greater Seattle area.  SOJ was the Project 
Management team for the initial construction of Meydenbauer Center.   
 
CONTRACTING 
The Board of Directors is required by charter to approve all contracts that exceed $75,000 or longer 
than one year, regardless of amount.  Staff has negotiated a scope of services with SOJ with a contract 
amount not to exceed $77,552.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff is recommending the BCCA Board of Directors approve Resolution 2019-07 that authorizes the 
BCCA Board Chair to enter into a one-year contract with SOJ in the amount not to exceed $77,552.  
 
If you have any questions about the resolution, please contact me at (425) 450-3750. 
 



BELLEVUE CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-08 
 

Resolution to Enter Into a Contract with SOJ for Project Managment Services 
 

WHEREAS, the Bellevue Convention Center Authority (the "Authority"), a public corporation 
chartered by the City of Bellevue (the "City"), has been duly constituted pursuant to RCW 35.21.730 
et.seq. and Ordinance No. 4092 of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by its Charter to transfer funds, to receive and 
administer governmental or private funds, to contract regarding the income or receipts from real and 
personal property, and to do anything a natural person may do; and 
 

WHEREAS, on February 21st, 2019, the Authority issued a public RFP for Project Management 
Services for Meydenbauer Center Expansion; and 
 

WHEREAS, staff received only one qualified response, which was SOJ; and 
 
 WHEREAS, staff recommends the Authority enter into a contract with SOJ for Project 
Management Services for $77,552; and 

 
WHEREAS, the BCCA Board of Directors charter requires the Board to approve all contracts 

that exceed $75,000 and over one year in duration; 
 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Authority 
that it hereby authorizes the Board Chairman to execute a contract with SOJ for Project Management 
Services. 
 
 The undersigned Chairman of the Bellevue Convention Center Authority does hereby certify 
that the resolution set forth above was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Bellevue 
Convention Center Authority at a meeting held after due notice on April 24, 2019 at which a quorum 
was present. 
 
 DATED this 24th day of April, 2019. 
 
      _____________________________ 
             Robert Wallace, Chairman 
      Bellevue Convention Center Authority 

 



MARKETING



 

11100 NE 6th Street, Bellevue, WA 98004 | 425-637-1020 | Meydenbauer.com 

To:  Bellevue Convention Center Authority Board of Directors 

From: Sara Waltemire, CMP, CVP, Director of Sales & Events  

Cc:   Tim Carr, Chief Executive Officer 

Date: April 19, 2019 

Re:  March 2019 Sales and Marketing Activity 

Lead Summary 

We track the attendance, potential revenue and date availability for all local leads for Meydenbauer 

Center. This include repeat events, inbound inquiries and outbound sales efforts.  
 

March Comparison 

• Revenue from local leads in March 2019 was up $1,524,662 from March 2018.  

• Lead volume was basically flat with March 2018, with one fewer lead coming in.  

• The revenue is up largely due to the size of the inquiries. The average revenue from leads in 

March 2019 was nearly $34,000 whereas the average in March 2018 was $19,000. We also 

had 8 leads representing over $100,000 in potential revenue versus only 2 leads at a similar 

level in March 2018.   

 

 
 

 

 

 

126
106

113 112

$2,383,903 

$2,958,641 

$2,252,976 

$3,777,638 

0

500000

1000000

1500000

2000000

2500000

3000000

3500000

4000000

2016 2017 2018 2019

March Estimated Inbound Lead Revenue



 

11100 NE 6th Street, Bellevue, WA 98004 | 425-637-1020 | Meydenbauer.com 

Notable Inquiries from March 2019 

• $360,000 Cisco conference in January 2020 

o Facility too small 

• $150,000 Washington Policy Center banquet in October 2019 

• $100,000 PACCAR stockholder meeting in April 2020 

o Left in 2019 due to date availability & looking to return 

 

Year-to-Date Comparison 

• Revenue from local leads in 2019 was up $3,080,869 from 2018.   

• Lead volume was up 4 leads from 2018.  

 

 

 

 
Contract Summary 

Each week we evaluate our pace of booked events year-over-year. We have found that the quantity 

and potential revenue of bookings year to date gives us a good sense of how we are trending. We 

use this data to evaluate the following: 

• Are we seeing shifts in the overall economy through a slow down or uptick in corporate 

meetings and fundraising events in general? How are we performing in different market 

323 294 292 296

$6,647,574 $6,969,508 $6,872,650 

$9,953,519 

2 0 1 6 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 8 2 0 1 9

YTD ESTIMATED INBOUND LEAD REVENUE  



 

11100 NE 6th Street, Bellevue, WA 98004 | 425-637-1020 | Meydenbauer.com 

segments? Are the marketing campaigns we are actively running converting into the events 

we are hoping to attract?  
 

March Comparison 

• We issued 26 contracts for local events in March 2019, which represented $1,674,881 in 

revenue for 2019 and beyond.  

• This is 5 more contracts than were issued in March 2018 and represents $1,086,036 more in 

revenue.  

• We have seen larger groups booking earlier than we saw in March 2018. We had three large 

groups rebook events that represent at least $175,000 each in March 2019.   

 

 
 

Notable Bookings from March 2019 

• $561,000 Facebook Technologies rebooking in November 2019 

• $83,000 T-Mobile meeting in July 2019 

• $45,000 Clark Nuber holiday party in December 2019 

 

 

37 39 21 26

$913,087 

$1,153,694 

$588,845 

$1,674,881 

0

200000

400000

600000

800000

1000000

1200000

1400000

1600000

1800000

2016 2017 2018 2019

March Contract Issued Revenue



 

11100 NE 6th Street, Bellevue, WA 98004 | 425-637-1020 | Meydenbauer.com 

Year-to-Date Comparison 

• We issued 70 contracts in 2019, which represented $3,728,343 in revenue for 2019 and 

beyond.  

• This is 5 fewer contracts than were issued in 2018 and represents $1,453,305 more in revenue.  

 

 
 

 
Lost Lead Analysis 

We track our lost opportunities to understand the reason for the lost business.  Our business has 

consistent peaks and valleys which is reflected in our lost business. The booking calendar is finite and 

our primary reason for lost business is due to the preferred date being booked.   

 

2019 Key Lost Business Data from 2019 Year-to-Date 

• The reasons for lost business can be broken up into five key categories – Availability, rate 

management, client preferences, not hearing back from clients or event cancellations.   

o 32% of business lost due to availability.  

o 23% lost due to rate management.  

o 19% lost due to no response from the client.  

79 79 75 70

$2,052,097 $2,120,061 
$2,275,038 

$3,728,343 

2 0 1 6 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 8 2 0 1 9

YTD CONTRACT ISSUED REVENUE 



 

11100 NE 6th Street, Bellevue, WA 98004 | 425-637-1020 | Meydenbauer.com 

o 16% lost due to client preferences. 

o 8% lost due to event cancellation. 

o 2% lost for other reasons.  

 

 
 

2020 Key Lost Business Data from 2019 Year-to-Date 

• The reasons for lost business can be broken up into five key categories – Availability, rate 

management, client preferences, not hearing back from clients or event cancellations.   

o 50% of business lost due to rate management.  

o 35% lost due to availability.   

o 15% lost due to no response from the client.  

o 0% lost due to client preferences, event cancellation or other reasons.  

 

• The further out we are from an event, the more likely we are to lose it based on rate 

management because we are preserving our space for larger events or due to space 

limitations. Whereas as we have not lost any business in 2019 for 2019 because our building 

is too small, we have lost 3 events for 2020 because we don’t have the space to 

accommodate event needs. This is why the revenue potential from business lost in terms of 

availability is so high compared to the other categories.  

$961,236, 32%

$626,882, 23%

$507,916, 19%

$723,389, 16%

$319,038, 8% 

$216,500, 2%

Leads Lost By Reason for 2019

Date & Space Availability (32%)

Rate Management (23%)

No Response from Client (19%)

Preferred Other Venue (16%)

Event Cancellation (8%)

Other (2%)



 

11100 NE 6th Street, Bellevue, WA 98004 | 425-637-1020 | Meydenbauer.com 

 
 

 

Key Marketing Initiatives 

Website Redesign: 

• We had our initial kickoff meeting with Brewhouse Media on our website redesign. We are 

focusing on creating a more guided experience that will encourage prospective clients to 

submit an inquiry form for a quote more consistently when interacting with our website.  

 

Drive Q3 Occupancy: 

• Our sales manager has been actively pursuing HR professionals and executive admins for 

opportunities for Q3 business. Currently our existing promotion has led to one group holding 

space.   

  

Holiday Parties: 

• With our most recent Sync Up, we started promoting our holiday party packages. We are 

currently holding space for two new holiday parties and have contracted two others for 

December 2019.  

  

 

$1,054,590, 35%

$220,990, 50%

$57,700, 15%

Leads Lost By Reason for 2020

Date & Space Availability (35%)

Rate Management (50%)

No Response from Client (15%)

Preferred Other Venue (0%)

Event Cancellation (0%)

Other (0%)



STAFF
REPORT



 

To: Bellevue Convention Center Authority Board of Directors 
From: Brad Jones, Executive Director 
CC: Tim Carr, Chief Executive Officer 
Date: April 19, 2019 
RE: Visit Bellevue Executive Summary 
 
Bellevue lodging activity in March was mixed as demand was even but is up year to date by nearly 3%. 
We hosted 173,510 overnight visitors in March and although citywide occupancy was down 4% in March 
at 67.5%, the average daily rates were up 2% at $181.95 and overall lodging revenue was up 2%.  
 
Year to date through the first quarter 2019 Overnight Visitors are up 1% while citywide lodging 
occupancy is down 2%, average daily rates are up 2% and demand is up 3%, the X factor is that our 
lodging supply is up 5% which fuels anxiety in the marketplace. You can access this data at any time in 
real time at the following link: 
https://datastudio.google.com/reporting/1cjr6eSEqi1d0zAr_p3fVAg2FmZmGWuW5/page/crag 
 
Visit Bellevue recently developed an online application process for the newly designed Visit Bellevue 
Advisory Board. We are asking for all interested applicants to apply by June 15th and the BCCA Marketing 
Committee will review and send a nominations recommendation to the full BCCA Board at the June 
BCCA meeting. 
 
I am very happy to inform you that Visit Bellevue’s new Director of Visitor Experience will start on 
Monday April 29th.  Alexis Beeton comes to us from Visit Seattle and will hit the ground running by 
developing and implementing many of our new visitor experience programs. We will introduce you to 
Alexis and the Visitor Experience plans at the May Board meeting. 
 
Additionally, building on our most recent Visitor origin research and data collection, we have formalized 
this knowledge into the attached flier to communicate a high-level understanding of where our Visitors 
come from. We hope that this is both informative and useful. 
 
Marketing & Communications 
As we kick off Q2, Visit Bellevue’s marketing team continues to advance the priorities outlined in our 

2020 vision plan, focused on the development of a new Visit Bellevue brand and benchmarking program 

performance.   

Our partners, Cubic Creative, presented their initial findings and brand position to our team on April 

4th.  They will be unveiling conceptual campaigns, logos and a formalized marketing plan in two weeks, 

giving our team the framework to deploy a new brand. This process also aligns with the redevelopment 

of our website, which will commence May 6th and will take about 4 months to complete.  

Noted in our last meeting, our team has refocused our communications strategy and is working 

diligently to create original content that can be distributed across multiple channels.  The diligent effort 

to bring personality to the tone of our content and create a dynamic web presence has been successful. 

Based on quarterly benchmarks, traffic to our blog is up 10% and time spent on site has increased by 

77%, when compared to Q1 2018.  Engagement on social networks has also increased with a 7% uptick 

on Facebook as a result of 3,065 likes, shares or comments.   

https://datastudio.google.com/reporting/1cjr6eSEqi1d0zAr_p3fVAg2FmZmGWuW5/page/crag


 

Other notable achievements for the team include the sign-off of the 2019/2020 visitor guide which goes 

to press next week; the expansion of an Instagram influencer marketing program; the hosting of 2 

journalist, and during the month of April the team has sent 29 media pitches which should result in 

hosting opportunities in the coming months.  

 
Visit Bellevue Sales 
Through February, the Convention Sales Team has generated 35 leads which represent 34,006 room 

nights and $9,351,650 in direct spend revenue to Bellevue. 

Convention Sales Leads 

During the first quarter of 2019, the Convention Sales Team has generated 60 room night leads which 

represent 61,997 room night leads and $17,049,175 in potential direct spend revenue to Bellevue 

 

Room Nights Booked 
The graph below shows that the Visit Bellevue Convention Sales Team during Q1 contracted 11,493 

room nights.  These room nights represent $3,160,575 in direct spend to Bellevue.  At the end of the 

first quarter, we have exceeded our room night goal. 

53 67 60 

56,624 

70,122 
61,997 

47,500 

56,617 53,460 

2017 2018 2019

Room Night Leads YTD March 2019

# of Leads # of Room Nights Budget



 

 

  

8,625 

1,513 1,210 

1,338 

3,565 

10,283 
Budget, 9,500 Budget, 9,625 

Budget, 8,400 

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

2017 2018 2019

Room Nights Booked March YTD 2019

Self-Contained Meydenbauer Budget



 

Lost Business  
The graph below compares lost business from March 2015 – 2019.  The 22,452 room nights lost through 

March of 2019 and represent $6,174,300 in potential direct spend in Bellevue.  The year-to-date lost 

rooms in 2019 are below the five-year average of 25,539 room nights lost.  

 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Room Nights Lost 28,093 18,908 41,278 16,964 22,452

Direct Spend $7,725,575 $5,199,700 $11,351,450 $4,665,100 $6,174,300

$7,725,575 

$5,199,700 

$11,351,450 

$4,665,100 

$6,174,300 

28,093 

18,908 

41,278 

16,964 

22,452 

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

Room Nights Lost YTD March 2015 - 2019

Direct Spend Room Nights Lost



TOP DOMESTIC OVERNIGHT VISITORS TO BELLEVUE IN 2018

CALIFORNIA

20%
WASHINGTON

20%
OREGON

11%
TEXAS

5%
NEW YORK

3%
FLORIDA

3%
ARIZONA

3%
ALASKA

3%
INFO@VISITBELLEVUEWASHINGTON.COM (425) 450-3777VISITBELLEVUEWA.COM

VISIT BELLEVUE

In 2018, Bellevue hosted 2,151,644 Domestic Overnight Visitors who spent $675 million and 
created an economic impact of $1.7 billion for the Bellevue economy in 2018.

Bellevue has 5,566 hotel rooms and it is anticipated that Bellevue will add 1,600 additional 
hotel rooms by the summer of 2022.

Traditionally, Bellevue hotels operate at an average occupancy of 72% and a peak occupancy 
of 85%. Visit Bellevue plans to concentrate on building demand for weekend and seasonal 
occupancy. 

DOMESTIC 
OVERNIGHT
VISITORS

*1% represents approximately 21,000 domestic overnight visitors



INFO@VISITBELLEVUEWASHINGTON.COM (425) 450-3777VISITBELLEVUEWA.COM

VISIT BELLEVUE

In 2018, Bellevue hosted 353,402 International Overnight Visitors, which represents 16% of 
our Total Visitors. 

Those International Visitors spent $260 million in Bellevue, which represents 38% of total 
visitor spending, and created an economic impact of $650 million for the Bellevue economy 
in 2018. 

International travel to Bellevue was up 2.3% in 2018, while average spending per International 
Visitor was $1,040.

INTERNATIONAL
OVERNIGHT
VISITORS

TOP INTERNATIONAL OVERNIGHT VISITORS TO BELLEVUE IN 2018

AUSTRALIA

6%
CHINA

14%
CANADA

13%
UNITED KINGDOM

10%
JAPAN

5%
GERMANY

3%
MEXICO

3%
SAUDI ARABIA

3%
*1% represents approximately 3,500 international overnight visitors


	II.      ATTENDANCE:  Bob Wallace, Roger Anderson, Rick Carlson, Laurie Tish, Ron Hofilena, John Christison (via phone)
	Motion by Mr. Anderson and second by Mr. Hofilena to approve the January 23, 2019 meeting minutes. Motion carried 5-0.
	Motion by Mr. Anderson and second by Mr. Hofilena to approve the February 2, 2019 meeting minutes. Motion carried 5-0.
	IV.      CHAIRMAN REPORT
	No Report
	Accounts Payable checks #60233 to #60366 $ 321,678.72

	B. Facilities Committee
	Mr. Vaughan presented a memorandum dated February 22, 2019 regarding the Facilities Report.
	Motion by Mr. Anderson and second by Mr. Carlson to approve Resolution 2019-05 Motion carried 5-0.
	XIII. COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE PUBLIC - None
	IX. ADJOURNMENT
	February 2019 Financials.pdf
	KEY ITEM
	FINSTMTS.XLS
	Contents
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement
	YEAR TO YEAR4
	CASH FLOW STMT
	FSNOTES
	REVBUD.XLS
	TOTBUD.XLS
	ARCHART.XLS
	March Memo.pdf
	BoardMar2019


	March 2019 Financials.pdf
	KEY ITEM
	FINSTMTS.XLS
	Contents
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement
	YEAR TO YEAR4
	CASH FLOW STMT
	FSNOTES
	REVBUD.XLS
	TOTBUD.XLS
	ARCHART.XLS

	Res2019-06 V&R Roofing Contract.pdf
	RESOLUTION 2019-06

	Res2019-08 SOJ Contract.pdf
	RESOLUTION 2019-08

	0327 Minutes.pdf
	II.      ATTENDANCE:  Bob Wallace, Roger Anderson, Rick Carlson, Ann Kawasaki Romero, Laurie Tish, Ron Hofilena
	Motion by Mr. Anderson and second by Mr. Carlson to approve the February 27, 2019 meeting minutes. Motion carried 5-0.
	IV.      CHAIRMAN REPORT
	No Report
	B. Facilities Committee
	Mr. Vaughan presented a memorandum dated March 22, 2019 regarding the Facilities Report.
	XIII. COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE PUBLIC - None
	IX. ADJOURNMENT




